
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
Special Meeting AGENDA South Branch Library 
May 20, 2009 7:00 p.m. 1901 Russell Street 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax 

The Board of Library Trustees may act on any item on this agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 
B. Public Comments (7:00 – 7:30 p.m.) 

(Proposed 30-minute time limit, with speakers allowed 3 minutes each)  

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues 
Comments / responses to reports and issues addressed in packet. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees  
E. Approval of Agenda 
 

II. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Branch Bond Program, FY 2010 and FY 2011 Measure FF Fund (308) Budget   
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving the Proposed FY 2010 and FY 2011 
Berkeley Public Library Capital Improvement Budget, Measure FF as presented.  

 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. All 
items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of April 14, 2009 Special Meeting 
Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the April 14, 2009 special meeting of the 
Board of Library Trustees. 

B. Contract: Field Paoli Architects for architectural services for the replacement or 
renovation and expansion of the South Branch Library   
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to recommend City Council approve execution of a 
contract and any amendments with Field Paoli Architects to provide architectural and 
engineering services for the South Branch Library renovation and expansion project in 
an amount not to exceed $785,000 for all services and reimbursable expenses for the 
period June 15, 2009 through December 31, 2011.  

C. Select an architectural services firm for the West Branch and Claremont Branch 
renovation projects 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution initiating a process to select an architectural 
services firm for the West Branch renovation and expansion project and an architectural 
services firm for the Claremont branch renovation project. 

D. Agreement with Innovative Interfaces, Inc. for hardware and software maintenance 
services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to 
enter into an agreement with Innovative Interfaces, Inc. for the provision of hardware and 
software maintenance services for the Library’s circulation system for the period of July 
1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 in a total amount not to exceed $100,000.  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
May 20, 2009 special meeting  Page 2 

E. Adopt a policy decreasing the maximum number of holds allowable per patron 
generally and on the number of media items. 
Recommendation: Adopt a policy revising the maximum allowable holds per patron from 
15 to 12 and decrease the number of holds on media items, including DVDs, VHS, and 
music CDs to 8 per person effective June 30, 2009.  

 
F. Adopt a resolution discontinuing OCLC based Interlibrary Loan (ILL) services.  

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution discontinuing the Library’s participation in the 
OCLC interlibrary loan program effective June 30, 2009. 

 
 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on Development of FY 2010 and FY 2011 Berkeley Public Library Biennial 
Budget  
Information on the status of the two-year Library budget’s development, Proposed FY 
2010 and FY 2011 Berkeley Public Library Budget to be presented for approval in June 
2009.  

B. Update on the Branch Bond Program 
Information on status of activities related to implementation of Measure FF, Branch 
Library Improvement Program. 

C. May 2009 Monthly Report from Library Director Donna Corbeil  
• Library Development 
• Professional Activities 
• Programs, Services and Collections 
• Personnel 

D. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are 
posted at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org. 

 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

Next regular meeting will be held at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, June 10, 2009 at the South Branch 
Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Please refrain from wearing scented products at public meetings. 
 
Written materials may be viewed in advance of the meeting at the Central Library Reference Desk (2090 Kittredge Street), or 
any of the branches, during regular library hours. 
 
To request a meeting agenda in large print, Braille, or on cassette, or to request a sign language interpreter, assistive-listening 
device or other accommodation for the meeting, please call (510) 981-6195 (voice) or (510) 548-1240 (TDD). Providing at 
least five (5) working days’ notice prior to the meeting will help to ensure availability. 
 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
May 20, 2009 special meeting  Page 3 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in 
the display cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge 
Street, as well as on the Berkeley Public Library’s website on May 14, 2009. 
 
  
 //s// ______________________________________________________ 
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Action on Communications is limited to referral to staff or Trustee for investigation and/or 

recommendations. 

A. SuperBOLD 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 



Action II, Item A

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 ACTION CALENDAR 
 May 20, 2009 
 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 

FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services  

SUBJECT: FY 2010 & FY 2011 – MEASURE FF FUND (308) BUDGET DEVELOPMENT:  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution approving the proposed FY 2010 and FY 2011 Measure FF Fund (308) 
Budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Measure FF Fund (308) is part of the total biennial budget package to be presented to the 
Board for approval on June 10, 2009. 

BACKGROUND 

At the regular Board meeting held on February 11, 2009 the Board approved a budget for the 
$26,000,000 Neighborhood Branch Library Improvements Project and a project schedule (BOLT 
Resolution No. R09-14) necessary to initiate the sale of Measure FF bonds by the City. 

On March 24, 2009 the Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 64,387–N.S. authorizing 
the issuance of $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount of general obligation bonds, series 
2009 (Measure FF – Neighborhood Branch Library Improvements Project) in response to the 
November 2008 voter passage of the $26,000,000 valued Bond Measure FF and the Library’s 
Board action noted above.  The sale of this first series of bonds closed on April 29, 2009 
yielding proceeds of $9,964,575 (net of issuances costs) and was allocated into the Library’s 
new Measure FF Fund (308) on May 11, 2009.    

A second series for the remaining $16,000,000 is anticipated to be issued in mid-2010. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECT 

Although the proceeds from the first series bond sales have been allocated to the Measure FF 
Fund (308) these funds must be appropriated by the Board prior to use.  However, a single 
exception to this practice was allowed with authorization by the City for FY09 startup expenses 
attributed to consulting services rendered by Rene Cardinaux.  This exception was granted in 
order to propel the project forward and minimize future project delays.  Mr Cardinaux’s FY09 
expenses have been paid and amounted to $9,276.50.  There are no other project expenses 
expected before FY10. 

 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT  
Measure FF Fund (308) Budget Development – FY10 & FY11 Page 2 

 
 

2 

FY10 and Beyond 

Commencing early into FY10 the Library expects project activity to move forward at a relatively 
quick pace.  It is expected that before FY09 closes that both the Project’s construction 
management firm and the architects for the North and South Branch libraries will be under 
contract, with all firms immediately initiating conceptual design activities for their respective 
projects.  Consequently, based on very approximated project work schedules the Library is 
prognosticating project expenses as per exhibit Measure FF Fund (308): 5-Year Analysis 
(attachment 1) with major construction commencing at the earliest mid to late FY 2010. 

Library management will provide to the Board project budget updates on a regular basis 
commencing with this report. 

Uses of Bond Funds 

Recent communication with the consulting attorney on the bond float (ORRICK, HERRINGTON 
& SUTCLIFFE LLP) provided some guidance as to the appropriate use of the Measure FF Fund 
monies in light of what is judged to be necessary and incidental to the project’s completion. 

There exists little in terms of case law addressing the usage of general obligation bond 
expenditures.  Usage of such funds under the State Constitution states bond monies may only 
be used for “the acquisition or improvement of real property.”  Such an extremely broad 
statement is thus narrowed by the statute or ballot resolution statement.  In this case the ballot 
measure stated, “Shall the City of Berkeley issue general obligation bonds not exceeding 
$26,000,000 to renovate, expand, and make seismic and access improvements at four 
neighborhood branch libraries, but not the Central Library, with annual reporting by the Library 
Board to the City Council?”   

The ballot measure determines the purposes for which the monies may be used and sets the 
tone for how precisely the determinants are defined. Thus, the degree of flexibility for use 
exercised by the issuer rests with concerns of reasonableness and what a court may determine 
the voter collectively thought they were voting for. 

In summary, as there does not exist a clear and concise framework from which to determine 
what is an appropriate use or not,  as a guiding principle Library management will assess 
Measure FF Fund expenditures through an assessment of what is necessary and incidental to 
fulfill what can be reasonably presumed as having been approved by the voters. 

FUTURE ACTION 

At the June 10, 2009 Board meeting adopt the FY 2010 & FY 2011 Biennial Budget (inclusive of 
the Measure FF Fund). 

 

Attachments: 

1. Measure FF Fund (308): 5-Year Analysis 
2. Resolution 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
M

E
A

SU
R

E
 F

F 
FU

N
D

 (3
08

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S
A
t
t
a
c
h
m
e
n
t
 
1

FY
 2

00
9

FY
 2

00
9

FY
 2

00
9

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

A
D

O
PT

ED
A

D
JU

ST
ED

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

M
od

 B
A

SE
M

od
 B

A
SE

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

  
9,

95
6,

02
2

$ 
   

16
,0

29
,7

37
$ 

 
3,

09
6,

12
6

$ 
  

49
5,

39
0

$ 
   

  
R

ev
en

ue
s

  N
et

 B
on

d 
P

ro
ce

ed
s

9,
96

4,
57

5
15

,9
43

,3
20

  M
is

c.
/ I

nt
er

es
t

10
,0

00
15

,0
00

10
,0

00
6,

00
0

1,
50

0
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
9,

96
4,

57
5

$ 
  

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
15

,9
58

,3
20

$ 
 

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
  O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
 P

er
so

nn
el

   
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
9,

27
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

27
7

2,
91

5,
95

8
3,

81
8,

36
5

92
1,

26
1

88
,8

00
   

 B
ui

ld
in

g
6,

81
5,

43
5

8,
92

4,
62

0
1,

64
8,

41
8

39
5,

73
8

   
 M

is
c.

/U
til

iti
es

/O
th

er
49

,4
23

64
,7

18
11

,9
54

3,
98

5
   

 P
ub

lic
 A

rt 
10

3,
78

8
13

5,
90

8
25

,1
03

8,
36

8

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
27

7
$ 

   
   

   
9,

27
7

$ 
   

   
   

9,
88

4,
60

5
$ 

   
12

,9
43

,6
12

$ 
 

2,
60

6,
73

6
$ 

  
49

6,
89

0
$ 

   
  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
(R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

   
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6,

07
3,

71
5

$ 
   

(1
2,

93
3,

61
2)

$ 
 

(2
,6

00
,7

36
)

$ 
 

(4
95

,3
90

)
$ 

   
 

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

(B
al

 +
 R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

   
9,

95
6,

02
2

$ 
   

16
,0

29
,7

37
$ 

 
3,

09
6,

12
6

$ 
   

 
49

5,
39

0
$ 

   
   

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

O
th

er
3%

 P
er

so
nn

el
 C

O
LA

R
ev

is
ed

 G
ro

ss
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 
{G

ro
ss

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 - 

B
ud

ge
t 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
}

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

   
9,

95
6,

02
2

$ 
   

16
,0

29
,7

37
$ 

 
3,

09
6,

12
6

$ 
   

 
49

5,
39

0
$ 

   
   

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

ot
es

:
pr

in
te

d:
14

-M
ay

-0
9

A
ss

um
es

 s
ec

on
d 

se
rie

s 
bo

nd
 s

al
e 

m
id

-F
Y

20
10

G
:\A

dm
in

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
\B

O
LT

\A
ge

nd
a 

P
ac

ke
ts

\2
00

9\
05

\[P
rjc

tn
 5

Y
R

_F
Y

10
 1

1_
14

M
A

Y
09

.x
ls

]3
08



 



Attachment 2BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 

 
 

Board of Library Trustees 
Resolution No.: 09-39 

 
ADOPT A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE NEIGHBORHOOD 

BRANCH LIBRARY IMPROVEMENTS  PROJECT, MEASURE FF  
 
WHEREAS, upon the completion of a 20-year feasibility study in 2008, the Branch Library 
Master Facilities Plan found the four neighborhood branches and the Tool Library to have 
serious defects in the areas of seismic and structural systems, energy efficiency, ADA 
compliance, space constraints and work flow; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees is responsible for managing the Library building 
program funded by voters, Measure FF, a $26,000,000 bond program and is responsible for 
making annual reports on the fiscal status of the projects to the Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Branch Library Master Facility Plan included recommendations for specific next 
steps, a Project Schedule, cost estimates and information relevant to the scope of each project; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, at the November 12, 2008 regular meeting the Board of Library Trustees approved 
(R08-103) by resolution the initiation of the project schedule, with the process to select 
architectural services firms for the North Branch Library and the South Branch Library; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the February 11, 2009 regular meeting the Board of Library Trustees approved 
(R09-14) by resolution a budget for the $26,000,000 Neighborhood Branch Library 
Improvements Project and a project schedule necessary to initiate the sale of Measure FF 
bonds by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the March 24, 2009 regular meeting the Berkeley City Council adopted  (No. 
64,387–N.S.) by resolution authorizing the issuance of $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount 
of general obligation bonds, series 2009 (Measure FF – Neighborhood Branch Library 
Improvements Project); and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 29, 2009 the sale of this first series of bonds closed yielding proceeds of 
$9,964,575 (net of issuances costs); and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2009 proceeds of $9,964,575 from the sale of the first series of bonds 
was allocated into the Library’s Measure FF Fund (308); and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of 
Berkeley to appropriate and approve the FY 2010 and FY 2011 budget for the Library 
Neighborhood Branch Library Improvements Project, Measure FF. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a special meeting on May 
20, 2009 by the following vote:



 
 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  

 ________________________________________  
 Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 

 ________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
Berkeley Public Library 

Board of Library Trustees 
 
Special Meeting MINUTES Central Library 
April 14, 2009 7:00 p.m. 2090 Kittredge Street 
 

Consent III. Item A 

 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

 
A. Call to Order 

  
 The special meeting of April 14, 2009 was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 Present:   Trustees Winston Burton, Carolyn Henry-Golphin, Susan Kupfer, Darryl Moore, and 

Therese Powell 
 Absent:   None 
 Also present: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Doug Smith, Deputy Director; Dennis 

Dang, Library Administrative Manager; Suzanne Olawski, Neighborhood Services 
Manager, Eve Franklin, Administrative Secretary 

 
B. Public Comments   

1. Blake Hausman – Children’s Storytime is such an amazing community resource for parents 
and children. He brought his daughter to story time every week. He asked to continue 
Storytime. 

2. Al Kitt commented on Information Item A regarding folding bikes in the library. He stated 
folding bicycles should not be allowed inside of the library and should be locked up to the 
bike racks outside the library. He believes folding bicycles are potentially unwieldy, unstable 
and dangerous. He urged the Board to enforce library rules of conduct firmly as written.  

3. Sheela Jivan – spoke in favor of Children’s Storytime. Her family uses the library and has 
benefitted immensely from Storytime. The Storytime librarians have been amazing at instilling 
a love of reading. She implored the Board to fund Storytime. 

4. Jane Scantlebury commended Jenifer Shurson for her efforts in human resources, the plans 
for employee training and path for promotions are greatly appreciated. Jane also spoke 
regarding budget issues, is aware that library administration is striving for no lay-offs and 
expressed concerns for staff reductions. The staff is as busy as ever with fewer staff. Further 
reductions will impact library patrons. Lack of dedicated BIN Support staff will negatively 
impact the program which is used by other libraries and agencies. Reduction in cataloging 
will create a backlog in getting new materials to the shelves. 

5. Elizabeth Overmyer expressed concerns about budget reductions. She previously worked in 
Children’s Department. Berkeley’s children’s collection is well respected but the programming 
aspect is also critical for the community and children. Literacy begins long before a child 
begins kindergarten. Children’s librarians bring reading to life through Baby Bounces, book 
discussion groups for elementary and middle school readers. When a library system reduces 
children’s services staff to a point at which they can no longer offer the programming that 
build bridges from a child to the library’s collections, they are falling far short of providing 
children’s services. 

6. Mahmoud Mohamed provided the Board with a correspondence regarding his complaints 
about misuse, mistreatment and theft in the tool lending library. Requested BOLT 
intervention. [Attachment A] 

7. Andrea Moss spoke about the proposed staffing cuts. It’s difficult to accomplish work tasks 
now and it will become even more so with staffing cuts. The cataloging unit will lose one of 3 
positions in the proposed budget. Cutting the number of holds would make a tremendous 
difference to staff. In her opinion, reducing limit would relieve burden on staff.  

8. Lydia Shiozaki - Library staff spend enormous amounts of time processing holds at North 
branch and are unable to do other tasks such as repairing audio books. Movie processing 
also takes a great deal of staff time to the detriment of the book collection. The Library should 
emphasize literacy and books. 

 
C. Report from Union and Employees  [Attachment B] 

 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
April 14, 2009  Page 2 
 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees 
Trustee Moore welcomed Winston Burton to the Board of Library Trustees. 
Trustee Burton described his participation in the Measure FF campaign as a member of the 
Library Foundation Board. Glad to see how the community supported the library during the 
November 2008 election and proud to be part of the process. Trustee Burton hopes to be able to 
provide a balance between demands and resources as part of the Board. 

 
E. Approval of Agenda 

 
R09-26 Moved by Trustee Henry-Golphin, seconded by Trustee Powell, to approve the agenda.  Motion 

passed unanimously. 

II. DISCUSSION CALENDAR 
 

A. Biennial Library Budget Development  
 
Discussion of the 2-year Library budget; proposed changes to baseline and direction to staff in 
preparation for presentation of Proposed FY 2011 and FY 2012 Library budget.  
  
Donna Corbeil, Library Director stated budgeting process has been really difficult. The service 
provided by the people at the desks and behind the scenes is really important to the success of the 
library. The goal is to not have any layoffs. We are still working on the impacts of the proposed staff 
reductions. Staff has been very creative in looking for alternative methods to reduce costs.  
 
Trustee Powell thanks Ms Corbeil and Dennis Dang for efforts. 

 
B. Update on the Branch Bond Program 

 
Discussion of staff report on status of implementation of the Measure FF branch improvement 
program, to include update on Request for Proposals, schedule, and budget. 

 
Chair Person Moore reported the City has sold $10,000,000 in Bonds to fund the improvements. 
 
Discussed assumptions regarding schedule which assumes only one branch will be closed at a time. 
Staff responded overlap would have fiscal impact, taking advantage of economic downturn. Board 
interested in public’s response to revised schedule. In addition, parking downtown might be a 
negative. 
 
Trustee Powell express importance of active communication program for Bond.  
 
Trustee Moore expressed support of good stewardship to possibly save money on construction costs. 
Staff is investigating opportunities to collaborate with other agencies for after school hours or 
alternate sites for young people. Trustee Moore expressed need to balance services and fiscal 
oversight and encouraged staff to explore services for young people after school. 
 
Staff will bring a revised bond implementation schedule for discussion and review. 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
R09-37 Moved by Trustee Kupfer, seconded by Trustee Golphin to approve the Consent Calendar as 

presented with the recommendation to move Items F and G to the Action calendar. Motion 
approved with Trustees Powell, Golphin, Kupfer and Moore in favor. Trustee Burton abstained. 
Motion passed. 

R09-27 Approve minutes of the February 11, 2009 Regular Meeting. 

R09-28 Approve minutes of February 25, 2009 Special Meeting. 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
April 14, 2009  Page 3 
 
R09-29 Approve minutes of March 11, 2009 Regular Meeting. 

R09-30 Approve minutes of March 13, 2009 Special Meeting. 

R09-31 Approve the Library Fee Schedule for 2009 and approve the Director of Library Services’ 
submission of the fee schedule to the City of Berkeley, Budget Office, for inclusion in the City 
of Berkeley’s Master Fee Schedule.  

R09-34 Adopt the resolution discontinuing the provision of exam proctoring service by staff for the 
public.  

R09-35 Adopt the resolution to recommend City Council approve execution of a contract and any 
amendments with Kitchell CEM to provide project management and construction 
administration services for the Branch Library Improvement Program, Measure FF in an 
amount not to exceed $996,900 for all services and reimbursable expenses for the period May 
7, 2009 through October 30, 2012.  Trustee Burton voted in favor of this item, it passed 
unanimously. 

IV. ACTION CALENDAR 
 
Consent items F: Acceptance of work of art and Consent item G: Selection of trustee to attend 4X2 committee 
meetings moved to Action.  

Consent Item F: Acceptance of a work of art as a gift to the library. 
 
Trustee Powell expressed concerns about making exceptions to the library’s established gift policy 
and setting policy. The library’s established gift/donation policy states: “...Personal property, art 
objects, memorial or commemorative objects, displays or plaques, portraits, artifacts, antiques, 
museum objects and similar items are not generally accepted as gifts.”  This is a lovely and generous 
offer from the artist and perhaps the library could contact the artist and see if she would be willing to 
make the donation to the Library Foundation. The Foundation and the artist could decide how the 
artwork could be used.  Donating to the Foundation would carry forward the same value that the artist 
expressed. Trustee Powell also expressed concerns that the library does not have capability to 
conserve and preserve these types of objects and it is not the mission on the library to do so. 
 
Trustees Golphin also expressed concerns, not about the gift itself, but we have to be careful about 
accepting gifts so that we are not setting precedence. Trustee Golphin supported the Trustee 
Powell’s suggestion to have the artist donate to the Foundation. It’s a great idea. It’s not that we’re 
not accepting the gift, just giving it another avenue. 

 
Trustee Kupfer stated the work might be useful to the library, the image could be used in bookmarks 
or other public relation material. 
 

R09-32 Moved by Trustee Powell, seconded by Trustee Golphin, to deny the resolution accepting a 
donated oil painting, titled Open Book from the artist Alicia DeBrincat and instead to instruct 
staff to recommend to artist to make the donation to the Library Foundation. Trustees Burton, 
Golphin, Moore and Powell voted in favor. Trustee Kupfer voted nay. Motion passed. 

Consent item G: Selection of Trustee to attend 4X2 Committee meetings 
 

 R09-33 Adopt the resolution selecting Trustee Golphin to represent the Board of Library Trustees at 
the 4x2 Committee meetings beginning in FY 2010 for a period of one year with Trustee Moore 
as the backup and other Trustees rotating as the second attendee. Motion passed unanimously. 

 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
April 14, 2009  Page 4 
 

V. INFORMATION REPORTS 
 

A. Behavior in the Library Guidelines 
B. Library’s Staff Training and Development Plan 
C. April 2009 Monthly Report from Library Director Donna Corbeil  
D. Transforming Life After 50 Baby Boomer Library Project  
E. Library events: Flyers and press releases for various Library programs. Library Director 

Donna Corbeil suggested that as a paper saving measure flyers and press releases will 
be posted on the events calendar on the Library website. 

 
VI. AGENDA BUILDING 

 
A. May 13, 2009 meeting is cancelled. A special meeting will be held on May, 20, 2009. 

1. Proposed Budget 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

R09-36 Moved by Trustee Kupfer, seconded by Trustee Powell to adjourn the special meeting of the 
board at 9:10 p.m. Motion passed unanimously. 



Attachment A
 

 

 



 



Attachment B
 

4/13/09 Statement to the Board from the Community Services Unit of the Berkeley Chapter 

of SEIU 1021 
 

 

In these amazing times of change and turbulence; the greatest economical downturn in 

history on the heels of the election of the first African-American president, there is great 

value to be found in collaboration and in discarding preconceived notions. 

 

Library services are commonly perceived as something that we can always depend on. The 

public library has been a familiar part of our American landscape ever since Andrew 

Carnegie decided that a democracy isn't a democracy until information is accessible to all. 

 

 

Library Aides are necessary to this most fundamental library service. If books aren't 

shelved properly or in a timely manner, this basic service is compromised. If staff can't 

find a book then the public can't find a book. Currently the library has a contractual 

obligation to employ 33 Aides , a 2002 level, at this time the library employs 

approximately 23. The Union believes this to be an indication that this most fundamental 

of services is already compromised. 

 

To extend hours of service to the public at this time would be to further compromise 

services and increase the workload of current staff. Not just Aides, but all the other 

classifications that will spend some time looking for that item that wasn't shelved in a 

timely manner. This is just a sliver of how workload is tied to services which is tied to 

staffing levels. 

 

 

The Union sees the dilemma that management is wrestling with: while funding to public 

libraries is being cut library usage is increasing. According to a recent Oakland Tribune 

article, Berkeley Public Library use is up 19% from 2007. It is the Union's job to 



 
protect job security and to preserve safe working conditions, which will also be difficult 

due to the same dilemma that management faces. 

 

The proposal to cut 5 vacant positions is a haphazard approach as far as the Union is 

concerned. These positions were vacant due to life events that we have little control over. 

Was there analysis in the decision to cut the 40 hour library assistant position from General 

Services? General Services is in the midst of its own change and-transition due to a 

workflow study that it underwent in recent months, lots of changes are due to occur there, 

the Union questions the elimination of this position . Add to that the 19% and growing, rise 

in library use and you have a huge workload for a shrinking staff. . As well, promotion 

from within becomes a double edged sword. A supervisor will think twice about promoting 

from within knowing that this will result in a position that will be frozen and then possibly 

cut in the future. The Union encourages a less arbitrary approach to freezing and 

eliminating positions. 

 

In a recent resolution (senate Concurrent Resolution No. 27) public libraries are recognized 

for their tremendous value to the public for a number of reasons-lets not allow that value to 

tarnish and work together to keep the services we have and the staff to provide those 

services. 

 

The Union wishes to acknowledge the collaborative and respectful approach that Library 

Director Donna Corbeil has set and hopes to find the same approach from the Board. 



 

Check it out -- It's National library week 
By Kristin Bender. 
Oakland Tribune 
Posted: 04/07/2009 04:38:36 PM PDT 

Berkeley - This week is the 51st National Library Week. 
 

But in these lean economic times, there doesn't need to be a Senate proclamation to get 
people to visit Berkeley libraries to borrow books and materials, librarians said, 

 
The California Senate recently passed a resolution recognizing the value of public 
libraries that "serve as centers for education, information, knowledge and entertainment 
by helping the general public, students, faculty. and researchers obtain the best, most 
accurate and complete information." 

 
The resolution says more than 21 million people use California's public libraries each 
year. 

 
During the 2007-08 fiscal year, 1.5 million visits were made to the five Berkeley public 
libraries, a jump of 14 percent over the previous year. At the four branches, the number of 
visits increased 19 percent. 

 
In 2008, circulation of materials from the library collections jumped more than 8 percent in 
2008 - twice the number from the previous year. On average, residents checked out 16 
items annually from the library, more than three times the most recent statewide mean, 
Berkeley library statistics show. 

 
Community Relations Librarian Alan Bern said visits and circulation numbers are up this 
year as well. 

 
In Berkeley, the libraries might get even busier in the future. Last November, Berkeley 
voters passed a measure to make the four branch libraries seismically safe and more. 
handicapped-accessible. 

 
 



 

 



Consent III, Item B 

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
May 20, 2009 

 
To:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
From:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services  
 
Subject:  CONTRACT: FIELD PAOLI ARCHITECTS FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR 

THE REPLACEMENT OR RENOVATION AND EXPANSION OF THE SOUTH 
BRANCH LIBRARY   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a resolution to recommend City Council approve execution of a contract and any amendments 
with Field Paoli Architects to provide a full range of architectural and engineering services for the 
South Branch Library project in an amount not to exceed $785,000 for all services and reimbursable 
expenses for the period June 15, 2009 through December 31, 2011.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Voters approved the sale of $26,000,000 in bonds to finance the renovation, expansion, and make 
seismic and access improvements at four neighborhood branch libraries. Architectural design services 
are included in the estimated soft costs.  Architectural and consulting services for the South Branch 
Library replacement or renovation and expansion project are included in the estimated soft costs, 
therefore funding of design services will be solely through use of Library bond funds. On March 24, 
2009 Berkeley City Council adopted a Resolution authorizing the issuance of $10,000,000 aggregate 
principal amount of general obligation bonds, series 2009 (Measure FF – Branch Library Improvement 
Project). These funds totaling $9,964,575 (net of issuance costs) were allocated to the Measure FF 
Fund (308) on May 11, 2009.  

Services provided will include a comprehensive set of architectural design services and specialty 
consultant services required for the completion of the South Branch project, such as: structural 
engineering; mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection; LEED documentation; landscape 
architecture; signage; lighting design; cost estimating and telecommunications. Field Paoli Architects 
will perform services beginning with program development through conceptual design phase, 
schematic design phase, design development phase, construction document development, bidding, 
negotiation and construction observation to completion. They will work with staff to incorporate the 
city’s public art requirement into the project.  

This contract is for a lump sum, $785,000 for all work to be completed as specified in the period 
specified. Payments will be made upon a schedule agreed to by both parties. Fees will be invoiced on 
a monthly basis based on percentage of completion. 
Approval of this contract will have no adverse fiscal impact on other Library projects or programs.  

 



 

BACKGROUND 
 
The Branch Library Facility Master Plan, completed in early 2008, documented the serious physical 
defects of the branches, recommended improvements and established baseline costs and project 
estimates for design and construction related costs. On November 4, 2008, Berkeley voters approved 
Measure FF, a Library bond measure not to exceed $26M to renovate, expand, and make seismic 
and access improvements at the four branch libraries.  

Following the Board’s approval in December 2008, staff began implementation of the branch 
renovation program. The City’s Purchasing Department released, on January 16, 2009 a Request for 
Proposals (RFP): Architectural Services for the Replacement or Renovation and Expansion of the 
South Branch Library.  A pre-proposal meeting occurred on January 27, 2009 followed by solicitation 
for proposals closing on February 12, 2009.  The responses received were numerous and therefore 
the process had been a highly competitive one.  A vetting committee, made up of staff, the library’s 
consultant and representatives from the community met twice and considered twenty-five proposals, 
staff recommended three firms be considered by the Board.  

At the March 11, 2009 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees the Board interviewed three 
firms representing the most qualified applicants. These interviews, as well as the applicants’ written 
proposals (RFP responses), background, professional references, and responses to follow-up 
questions were considered in determining the ranking of firms by qualifications.  

At the March 13, 2009 Special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, by Resolution R09-24, the 
Board rank ordered the firms interviewed and designated a preference for the firm considered as best 
meeting the criteria for the project as described in the request for proposals.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
Staff has negotiated with Field Paoli Architects to provide a full range of architectural and engineering 
services for the South Branch Library project and has reached an agreement for services and 
reimbursable expenses, for a total amount not to exceed $785,000.  

The Board of Library Trustees at the conclusion of the respective competitive selection processes 
shall recommend to the City Council the execution of architectural design contracts related to the 
bond measure funded improvements at the four branch libraries. 

FUTURE ACTION 
 
No future action is required at this time. 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 
 
 



Attachment 1 BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO. R09-41 
 
 

CONTRACT: FIELD PAOLI ARCHITECTS FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICE FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT OR RENOVATION AND EXPANSION OF THE SOUTH BRANCH LIBRARY 

 
WHEREAS, the Branch Library renovation program is funded by Measure FF bond funds approved by 
the voters to finance the renovation, expansion, and make seismic and access improvements at four 
neighborhood branch libraries; and 
 
WHEREAS, architectural design services are included in the estimated project costs for the South 
Branch project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley Purchasing Department opened the Requests for Proposals process 
for Architectural Services for the Replacement or Renovation and Expansion of the South Branch 
Library, on January 16, 2009 and closed said solicitation on February 12, 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board interviewed the three most qualified firms at the March 11, 2009 regular 
meeting of the Board of Library Trustees and at the March 13, 2009 special meeting of the Board, by 
Resolution R09-24 designated a preference for the firm of Field Paoli Architects as best meeting the 
criteria for the South Branch project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Berkeley code section 3.04.090(E) the Library shall recommend to the City 
Council the execution of contracts relating to the improvements at the four branch libraries, including 
but not limited to contracts for design, engineering, construction management and construction;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley 
adopt a resolution to recommend City Council approve execution of a contract and any amendments 
with Field Paoli Architects to provide the full range of architectural and engineering services for the 
South Branch Library project in an amount not to exceed $785,000 for all services and reimbursable 
expenses for the period June 15, 2009 through December 31, 2011.  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTENTIONS:  
  

              

      Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 
              

      Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
      Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 



Consent III, Item C.

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 May 20, 2009 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: PROCESS TO SELECT AN ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FIRM FOR THE 

WEST BRANCH AND CLAREMONT BRANCH RENOVATION PROJECTS 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Adopt a resolution initiating a process to select an architectural services firm for the South 
Branch renovation and an architectural services firm for the Claremont branch renovation 
project.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Voters approved the sale of $26M in bonds to finance the renovation, expansion, and make 
seismic and access improvements at four neighborhood branch libraries. Measure FF bond 
proceeds will fund the design and construction of the branch library improvements. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
The Board approved the process to move forward on hiring the design firms for the North and 
South branch libraries in November 2008. Staff is in the process of completing these activities. 
The Board of Library Trustees is responsible for managing the Library building program funded 
by Measure FF. Development of a schedule and approval of key activities is the responsibility of 
the Board.  
 
To continue the implementation of the proposed project schedule, the Library will work with City 
staff to initiate a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the West Branch Library and a separate 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Claremont Branch Library. The scope of work in the RFPs 
will reflect the needs of the branch as detailed in the Branch Library Master Facility Plan.  
 
FUTURE ACTION 
 
The process for these two projects will follow the same process as that of the North and South 
design team selection. At a subsequent Board meeting, staff will prepare information for review, 
discussion and approval of the process, to include: status of RFPs, including a pre-proposal 
meeting for interested firms; vetting of eligible proposals by a committee; and a schedule for 
Board interviews of finalists and meeting times for decision-making. The responses received for 
the previous RFPs were numerous and the process was a highly competitive one, we expect 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Process to select design firms for West and Claremont Page 2 

 
this to be the case with the next two projects.  A vetting committee, made up of staff, the 
library’s consultant and representatives from the community will meet and consider the 
proposals. Staff will recommend three firms for each project to be considered by the Board.  
 
At a to-be-determined meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, the Board will interview three 
firms representing the most qualified applicants. These interviews, as well as the applicants’ 
written proposals (RFP responses), background, presentations, professional references and 
responses to follow-up questions will be considered in determining the ranking of firms by 
qualifications. The Board will rank order the firms interviewed and designate a preference for the 
firm considered as best meeting the criteria for the project as described in the request for 
proposals.  

Staff will initiate negotiations with the preferred firm to provide a full range of architectural and 
engineering services; then bring forward an agreement for a set price for services and 
reimbursable expenses.  

 
The Board of Library Trustees at the conclusion of the respective competitive selection 
processes shall recommend to the City Council the execution of the design contracts related to 
the bond measure funded improvements to the four branch libraries 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
 
 



Attachment 1 BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 09-42 

 
PROCESS TO SELECT AN ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FIRM FOR THE WEST BRANCH 

AND CLAREMONT BRANCH PROJECTS  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Branch Library renovation program is funded by Measure FF bond funds 
approved by the voters to finance the renovation, expansion, and make seismic and access 
improvements at four neighborhood branch libraries; and 
 
WHEREAS, architectural design services are included in the estimated project costs for the 
West and Claremont Branch projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff will work with the Purchasing Department to initiate the Requests for 
Proposals (RFP) process for Architectural; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board will interview the three most qualified firms at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Library Trustees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board will discuss the qualifications of the firms under consideration, determine 
their rank order and determine the preferred firm for each project; and  
 
WHEREAS, following contract negotiations staff will prepare an agenda and action item to the 
Board recommending approval of the terms of agreement, including a not-to-exceed contract 
amount with the selected design firms; and   
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the respective competitive selection processes the board shall 
recommend to the City Council the execution of architectural design contracts related to the 
bond measure funded improvements to the four branch libraries. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of 
Berkeley adopt a resolution initiating a process to select an architectural services firm for the 
West Branch renovation and an architectural services firm for the Claremont branch renovation 
project.    
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a special meeting 
held on May 20, 2009.  
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  

 ________________________________________  
 Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 

 ________________________________________  
 Douglas Smith, Deputy Director 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 



 
 
 
 



Consent III, Item D

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 May 20, 2009 
  
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Alicia Abramson, Manager Library Information Technology 
  
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT WITH INNOVATIVE INTERFACES, INC. FOR HARDWARE AND 

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to enter into an agreement with 
Innovative Interfaces, Inc. for the provision of hardware and software maintenance services for 
the Library’s circulation system for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 in a total 
amount not to exceed $100,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total cost of the contract, $100,000 is included in the Proposed FY 2010 Library Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Innovative Interfaces, Inc. (III) is the sole source provider for maintenance services on the 
Millennium circulation software. A new agreement must be signed each fiscal year. The 
Berkeley Public Library uses INNOPAC as its online public catalog, as well as the circulation, 
acquisition, serial and cataloging modules that support patrons’ access to the Library’s 
collections. The Library also utilizes the INN-Reach (LINK+) module to expand access to 
collections beyond those owned by the Berkeley Public Library.   
 
The Fiscal Year 2010 contract will include system additions budgeted for but not implemented in 
Fiscal Year 2009. The annual maintenance contract for FY2010 is anticipated to be 
approximately $68,000 without the system additions. 
 
The systems additions include the Encore Discovery ($23,750 annual subscription plus $2500 
implementation fee) platform and Research Pro ($5,700 annual subscription) modules of the 
Online Public Access Catalog (OPAC).  These system additions directly address strategic goal 
number 7 (“Patrons use with ease BPL’s content-rich and accessible electronic resources”) of 
the Library’s 2008 – 2011 Strategic Plan. 
 
The addition of the Encore Discovery platform and Research Pro will enable library users to 
simultaneously search multiple library resources at the same time using a single simplified 
search form similar to Google. Results will be keyword relevance ranked and include Library 
materials and relevant articles and online reference materials from several of the most popular 
databases the Library subscribes to.   



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Agreement with Innovative  Page 2 

 
 
These system additions will improve and enhance the search process for users who are 
increasingly accustomed to search systems which remove the barriers of guess work and 
confusing terminology from the process of searching so that users can more easily and 
intuitively find the resources they want and need.  Features of the Encore Discovery platform 
include automatic spell check which will help users find the right materials even if they misspell 
a word in the title or the author’s name (e.g. an incorrect spelling results in a response from the 
system “did you mean…” and the offering of a link to the correct spelling and the results from 
that search); the ability for users to “tag” library materials with terms more meaningful to them 
than Library of Congress Subject Headings (e.g. “cook book” instead of “Cookery”); the display 
of a “tag cloud” which includes both official library catalog subjects as well as user generated 
tags in result sets; a much simpler interface which doesn’t force the user to choose a particular 
search method, but instead simply allows them to search by whatever term they have (title, 
keyword, author) to find the materials they want; a “faceted” results display which clusters like 
items together and aids users in interpreting more complex result sets. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
The current agreement between III and the Berkeley Public Library began on July 1, 
2008 and expires on June 30, 2009. Failure to maintain a maintenance agreement on the 
automated circulation system could result in operational difficulties and have a negative impact 
on patrons utilizing Library services.  The additional system  components will be installed and 
available to the public by early Fall 2009, meeting the time frame set in the Strategic Plan for 
usability improvements to the system. 
 
FUTURE ACTION 
 
No further action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
 



Attachment 1BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.: 09-43 
 
 

AUTHORIZE DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVICES TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
INNOVATIVE INTERFACES, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR THE LIBRARY’S CIRCULATION SYSTEM FOR THE 
PERIOD JULY 1, 2008 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2009 IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$100,000 
 
WHEREAS, Innovative Interfaces, Inc. is the sole source provider for maintenance services on 
the Millennium circulation software; and 
 
WHEREAS, each fiscal year the Berkeley Public Library enters into a new agreement with 
Innovative Interfaces for maintenance services; and 
 
WHEREAS, failure to enter into a new agreement each year will result in the termination of 
support for the hardware and software supporting the Library’s circulation system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the annual maintenance agreement is provided for in the FY2009 
Budget. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley 
to authorize Director of Library Services to enter into an agreement with Innovative Interfaces, 
Inc. for the provision of hardware and software maintenance services for the library’s circulation 
system for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 in a total amount not to exceed 
$100,000. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a special meeting 
held on May 20, 2009 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  

 ________________________________________  
 Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 

 ________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 



Consent III, Item E 

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Date:  May 20, 2009 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Jay Dickinson, Circulation Services Manager 
  
SUBJECT: POLICY DECREASING THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF HOLDS ALLOWABLE 

PER PATRON GENERALLY AND ON THE NUMBER OF MEDIA ITEMS 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a policy revising the maximum allowable holds per patron from 15 to 12 and decrease the 
number of holds on media items, including DVDs, VHS, and music CDs to 8 per person 
effective June 30, 2009.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The holds function allows patrons to place a total of 15 items on reserve. At each of the five 
Library locations, staff print a list of items requested for reserve daily, pull these materials from 
the shelf, place them on the hold shelf, or send them via the Library’s delivery system to their 
proper pickup location. If a reserved item is circulating, staff is alerted at the time of check-in, 
and the item is then placed on the hold shelf or into transit.   
 
 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
Popularity of the holds function has increased over time with patrons. In January of 2007, 12131 
holds were filled system wide. In January of 2008 this number increased to 13001. And in 
January of 2009 it increased to 16325.  
With an increase in the popularity of the Link+ lending system, and recent reductions in vacant 
staff positions, this increase in workload has proved difficult to keep up with, causing a strain on 
staff who process the items, including the Library’s delivery drivers.  
 
While it is difficult to estimate the impact of the proposed reduction in maximum allowable holds, 
as the Millennium integrated library system used by the Library does not retain statistics 
revealing how many patrons are reaching the maximum holds allowed to them at any given 
time, it is likely that a decrease in the maximum allowable holds will lead to a decrease in the 
overall number of holds being placed, and therefore handled by staff.  
 
Patrons are currently limited to having 8 DVDs, VHS tapes, and music CDs on their card at any 
given time. Reducing allowable holds on these item types to 8 will bring hold limits in line with 
borrowing limits, will further reduce workload, and will ensure a greater number of media items 
will be available for browsing.  
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Recommended Changes to Service Fees for Overdue Materials Page 2 

 
 
Authorization to proceed with the renewal changes will result in implementation on June 30th, 
2009. Notices of the pending changes will be posted in Library (Central and branches) 
immediately.  
 
 
FUTURE ACTION 
 
No further action is required. 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 
 
Attachment 1: Resolution 
 
CONTACT PERSON 
 
Jay Dickinson, Library Services Manager (510) 981-6174 
 
 
 



Attachment 1 BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.: 09-44 
 
 

APPROVAL TO DECREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF HOLDS ALLOWABLE 
PER PATRON GENERALLY AND ON THE NUMBER OF MEDIA ITEMS 

 
 
WHEREAS, it has been the practice of the Berkeley Public Library to offer a holds service  
allowing patrons to place a total of 15 items generally and 8 media items on reserve; and 
  
WHEREAS, the popularity of the holds service has increased greatly overtime with patrons; and 
 
WHEREAS, the popularity of the LINK+ lending service has also increased; and 
 
WHEREAS, the recent reductions in vacant staff positions have made it difficult to keep up with 
the increased workload, causing strain on staff who process and deliver the items. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of 
Berkeley to adopt a policy decreasing the maximum allowable holds per patron to 12 and 
decrease the number of holds on media items, including DVDs, VHS, and music CDs to 8 per 
person effective June 30, 2009. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a special meeting 
held on May 20, 2009 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTENTIONS:  
  

              

      Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 

              

      Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
      Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 



Consent III, Item F

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 May 20, 2009 

 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 

FROM: Douglas Smith, Deputy Director 

SUBJECT: DISCONTINUING OCLC BASED INTERLIBRARY LOAN (ILL) SERVICES 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution to discontinue the Library’s participation in the OCLC-based Interlibrary Loan 
program effective June 30, 2009. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This action will have negligible fiscal impact. The loss of the $2 per-request fee will be offset by 
the elimination of OCLC mailing costs associated with the service. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Since early in its history, the Berkeley Public Library has offered its patrons the ability to obtain 
items held in other libraries’ collections. Traditionally, this has been through the interlibrary loan 
program, a service whereby Berkeley’s patrons may request from libraries outside of Berkeley 
items not owned locally. Patrons using this service make a written request which the Berkeley 
Public Library staff receive, determine which libraries own the desired material, request it in turn 
from one of those institutions, borrow it on behalf of the Berkeley patron, and finally permit the 
user to borrow it for the normal loan period. Currently, an interlibrary loan request takes from 3-
10 weeks to be filled and costs $2 per request. Additionally, patrons at OCLC member libraries 
nationwide request items from the Berkeley collection. These requests are processed and filled 
by local staff. 

In 2006, the Berkeley Public Library joined the Link+ network of libraries, which is a networked 
catalog of 46 California and Nevada libraries using the Innovative Interfaces’ Millennium 
integrated library system. Membership in this network permits Berkeley Public Library borrowers 
to request items from any of these institutions directly from the Berkeley online public access 
catalog. In effect, membership in the Link+ network enables Berkeley Public Library patrons to 
have access to over 32 million items in Library collections. There is no charge to request items 
through Link+.   

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

The popularity of the Link+ service has grown dramatically since its introduction, in concert with 
a rapid decrease in the use of interlibrary loan.  As shown in the table below, while the need to 
access items via interlibrary loan has dropped to 196 in the most recent calendar year, Link+ 
usage has jumped to 16219 individual loans--over 80 times as many items loaned via ILL. 



These trends are directly related, and this large difference can be attributed to the ease, speed, 
and quality of access that membership in the Link+ networked catalog has afforded Berkeley 
patrons. The Link+ consortium continues to grow, with the Oakland Public Library and 
University of California, Santa Cruz Libraries soon to join. 

 

 INTERLIBRARY  

LOANS 

LINK+  

LOANS 

2006 763  [incomplete year]

2007 451 8638

2008 196 16219

 

Additionally, in the most recent year (2008), Berkeley Public Library staff processed 
approximately 1500 incoming interlibrary loan requests from other library systems. Ceasing this 
function will enable the deployment of staff time to assist with the Link+ service which is 
demonstrably growing in popularity with local patrons. While it does represent the loss of a 
longtime and traditional service, Berkeley Public Library staff can direct users toward Link+ for 
most items, and for those not held by Link+ libraries, other options include the California 
Catalog database and local genealogical libraries such as the Oakland Regional Family History 
Center. 

 

FUTURE ACTION 

No future action is required. 

 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 



Attachment 1BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
RESOLUTION NO.: 09-45 

 
APPROVAL TO DISCONTINUE OCLC BASED 

INTERLIBRARY LOAN (ILL) SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library has offered its patrons the ability to obtain items held in 
other libraries’ collections through the interlibrary loan program (ILL); and 
WHEREAS, an ILL request takes from 3-10 weeks to be filled and costs $2 per request; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the 2008, Berkeley Public Library staff processed approximately 1500 incoming 
ILL requests from other library systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library joined the Link+ network of libraries in 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, membership in the LINK+ network permits Berkeley Public Library borrowers to 
request items from any of these institutions directly from the Berkeley online public access 
catalog at no charge; and 
 
WHEREAS, the popularity of the Link+ service has grown dramatically since its introduction, in 
concert with a rapid decrease in the use of ILL.  
 
WHEREAS, the Link+ consortium continues to grow, with the Oakland Public Library and 
University of California, Santa Cruz Libraries soon to join. 
 
WHEREAS, ceasing the ILL function will enable the deployment of staff time to assist with the 
Link+ service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Berkeley Public Library staff can direct users toward Link+ for most items, and for 
those not held by Link+ libraries, other options include the California Catalog database and local 
genealogical libraries such as the Oakland Regional Family History Center. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of 
Berkeley to adopt a policy discontinuing the Interlibrary Loan (ILL) services effective June 30, 
2009. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a special meeting 
held on May 20, 2009 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  

 ________________________________________  
 Darryl Moore, Chairperson 
 

 ________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 



 



Information IV, Item A

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 April 14, 2009 
 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 

FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services  

SUBJECT: FY 2010 & FY 2011 BUDGET DEVELOPMENT: UPDATE  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no direct fiscal impact from this report. Direction provided by the Board during this 
meeting will be integrated into the development of the proposed biennial budget to be presented 
on June 10, 2009. 

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the Library’s budget development efforts 
since the April 14, 2009 Board discussion. At that meeting, the Board requested the Library 
present a proposed budget on May 20, 2009 for discussion, with approval following in June 
2009. Staff anticipated at that time to have the SF Bay area Personal Income Growth (PIG) and 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) economic indicators in early to mid-May in order to prepare 
accurate budget projections, present a library tax rate recommendation to Council, and have 
available definitive information on the state budget as it relates to funding library programs. 
However, upon release of the unexpected year-over-year decline of the PIG to 0.62% and the 
unavailability to date of the CPI, the City’s Manager’s Office has advised the Library to project a  
1% increase to the library tax rate for FY 2010. The Library’s tax rate may be increased by the 
greater of these two indicators.  

Staff recommends approval of the Library’s biennial budget and work plan at the regular Board 
meeting on June 10, 2009. Doing so will allow the Library’s budget to be included in the City 
Council budget review and discussion scheduled for June 23, 2009. While, this budget 
development schedule change will reduce the time the Board has to review the final proposed 
budget, the Library does not anticipate any further reduction to personnel than those presented 
on April 14 and is proposing all additional reductions be to non-personnel, specifically library 
materials, in order to bridge the gulf created by reduced revenue expectations.  The projected 
Library Tax fund balance combined with reductions to the material budget will provide a short-
term solution to the structural deficit increase of approximately $300,000 in FY 2010 created by 
a reduced tax rate increase of 1%. The amount of the reduction to the material budget proposed 
will depend on the final tax rate increase percentage, the City’s estimates of CalPERS 
increases, which are in the range of 6-10%, and any changes to the proposed state funding of 
library grant funded programs.  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
Biennial Budget Update – FY10 & FY11 Page 2 

 
 

2 

As the assumptions articulated in the April 14, 2009 report to the Board are affected by the 
greater economic conditions, staff will modify budget recommendations to address them and 
identify policy issues and decisions for Board consideration.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECT 

Balancing Measures 

In April, the Board approved several fee increases. While not substantial these increases will 
contribute to cost recovery efforts for services and materials.  At that time, the exam proctoring 
services was approved for discontinuation as a workload reduction measure.  

Position reduction proposals represented an overall loss of 6.0 FTE, or 7 positions, with the 
addition of one position – a .50 children’s Librarian I.  All positions proposed for reduction are 
currently vacant.   
 
Non-Personnel reductions include elimination of funding for miscellaneous professional services 
/ consultants, membership in the Urban Library Council, final payment of the capital loan, 
reductions to the travel and training budget, a scale-back of the computer replacement program, 
and a decrease to the capital improvement budget.  These reductions were partially offset by 
contract cost increases related to operations to reflect full funding and built-in cost of living 
increases.    
 
Additional balancing measures 
 
The Library proposes to continue into FY 2010 temporary deficit reduction measures initiated in 
February to contribute to future increased savings.  These include a selective hiring freeze and 
controls on the use of overtime.  
 
The May agenda includes several workload reduction measures: the elimination of the ILL 
program, and reductions to library material hold limits.  
 
Service and Operational Impacts 
 
As requested by the Board, staff will detail to the extent possible the direct impact on services of 
the proposed reductions, including material budget reductions in the proposed budget 
presentation; and will continue to do so as staffing reductions and operational and policy 
changes impact public services and staff workload.  
 
Unanticipated Expenses 
 
In the coming biennial budget cycle there may be several areas that produce unanticipated 
expenses without a defined funding source, these are: 

• Self-check System evaluation / recommendations 
• Measure FF continuity of service plan 
• Central Library public space plan study recommendations 
• Central Library capital needs above allocation 

 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
Biennial Budget Update – FY10 & FY11 Page 3 

 
 

3 

The Board may want to defer adopting any budget increases related to new programs or 
services, reinstating proposed reductions, or even to consider further reductions until mid-cycle 
budget development in FY 2010. At that time, the Library’s tax rate for FY 2011 may allow an 
increase to revenues, and there should be a better assessment available of the full impact of the 
2012 CalPERS rate increases.  

FUTURE ACTION 

At the June 10, 2009 Board meeting adopt the FY 2010 & FY 2011 Biennial Library Budget. 



 

 

 



Information IV, Item B 

 
   

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
              May 20, 2009 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: MAY 2009 MONTHLY BRANCH RENOVATION PROJECT REPORT FROM 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on branch renovation activities and 
updates from the previous month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
SUMMARY OF WORK 
 
Project Management and Construction Administration Services 
 
On Tuesday, May 5, City Council approved the execution of a contract and any amendments 
with Kitchell CEM to provide project management and construction administration services. Staff 
is in the process of finalizing the contract details and anticipate its execution by the end of May. 
 
Communication Plan 
 
Staff is working on a comprehensive communication plan to promote and increase awareness 
about the Branch Renovation Project, providing project stakeholders and the branch 
communities at-large with current information and progress updates. The plan will identify 
communication opportunities, methods, timeframes and audiences as well as serve as a public 
relations guide for promotion materials.   
  
 
Consultants 
Four proposals were received for library programming services.  The programming consultant 
will prepare a library building program by which the input of Library staff and the community on 
the purpose, scope, and function of each library building is gathered, considered, and possibly 
incorporated into building programming and design.  A library building program will be 
developed for each branch, including recommendations specific to each individual site as 
defined by their specific quantitative and qualitative needs.  A vetting committee comprised of 



Library staff will review and rank the finalists and make a selection. Staff will report to the Board 
on the contract/scope of services/cost; but this is anticipated to be under $50,000. 
 
The proposal period for technology consulting services closed on Tuesday, May 12, 2009 with 
five submissions.  The library technology consultant will assess existing and anticipate future 
building technological needs and determine their implications affecting the structure, space, and 
operation of each building.  Proposals will be vetted and interviews scheduled. Contract will be 
brought to the Board for approval.  
 
Continuity of Services 
Continuity of services options may have costs associated with them that are not covered by the 
Library bond; therefore, the Library will have to incur all costs for any implemented service 
options from our general operating budget.   
 
The Library is working with a real estate broker to locate a temporary facility for the Tool Library 
during the closure for construction of the South Branch site and storage space to hold books 
removed from the affected Branches and to store furniture being refinished or held for future 
use.  Any Tool Lending Library site will require a use permit.  Library staff are in the process of 
pursuing partnerships with neighborhood non-profits, schools and others already serving the 
student population in order to develop a plan for after-school library services in the community. 
 
WORK ANTICIPATED 
 
Short-term 
In the next 60 days: complete contract negotiations with two design firms and project planning 
and IT consultants, review and revise bond program budget and schedule for BOLT and City 
Council approval; then issue notice(s) to proceed.   Issue West Branch and Claremont Branch 
RFPs. 
 
KEY PROJECT ISSUES 
 
Schedule Status 
Staff will prepare and present to the Board a compressed project schedule for review and 
approval in the near future, this plan will reflect greater overlap in branch closures, relative to 
the geographic location and neighborhoods served, i.e. simultaneous closure of South and 
North; West and Claremont; or Claremont and North, but not West and North per Board 
direction.   
 
City Planning 
Library staff met with representatives from the City Planning department and discussed City 
planning procedures, CEQA requirements, and site specific issues, such as parking 
requirements, sidewalk closures and protection.  The City’s permit, Landmarks Preservation 
Commission (LPC) and Zoning Adjustment Board (ZAB) processes will be considered in 
developing a realistic timeline for each project and will be incorporated into a revised project 
schedule by the Project management firm. 
 
The historic interior and significant exterior features noted in the LPC Notice of Decision for 
each West Branch and North Branch were highlighted for architectural compliance. Any building 
additions should be in character with the historic building but not a replica of the original; 
additionally, any building demolition and addition and/or build new will trigger an EIR and involve 
more intensive LPC involvement. Renovation may have a shorter review process.  Use permits 
and parking variances will be required of all branch facilities as described in the Berkeley Zoning 
Code sections 23c.04.040, 23C.04.06.B, 23B.56.020.A, and 23d.32.080.A.  Coast Live Oak 
trees are the only City protected trees with specific restrictions; other trees such as redwoods 

http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/html/Berkeley23B/Berkeley23B56/Berkeley23B56020.html#23B.56.020


are free game.  The estimated process timeframes for the ZAB is 4-6 months and LPC is 6 
months to many years.  
 
BUDGET REPORT 
 
Bond Sales 
Bond monies totaling $9,964,575 net of issuance costs have been received by the City and 
allocated into Fund 308 (Measure FF).  Recent communication with the consulting attorney on 
the bond float (ORRICK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP) provided guidance as to 
appropriate use of these funds in light of what is ‘necessary and incidental’ to the project’s 
completion – leading to the issue of ‘judgment’; therefore, it is arguably necessary and incidental 
that moving in/out expenses and storage fees may be covered by bond monies as in order to 
execute the project the building must be vacated. Any allocation of bond funds to these costs 
could have a direct impact on the availability of funds for design and construction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



 

 
   

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
              May 20, 2008 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: MAY 2009 MONTHLY REPORT FROM LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on Library activities and updates from 
the previous month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
 
LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Legislative Day in Sacramento, April 15, 2009 
Deputy Director Doug Smith led the contingent for BPL: BOLT Trustee Winston Burton, 
Community Relations Librarian Alan Bern, Supervising Library Assistant Sam Clemons, BPL 
Foundation Executive Director Roxanne Figueroa, and BPL volunteer/Tech Helper Arlene 
Oweichik. 
  
His report: 
Several BPL folks attended the annual CLA-sponsored Legislative Day at the state capitol in 
Sacramento. Librarians, trustees, volunteers, adult literacy advocates, gathered there to 
heighten our legislators' awareness of the contributions libraries make to our communities, 
schools, and businesses, and to speak directly about specific issues being addressed by our 
elected officials in the statehouse.  
  
Representing BPL on the daylong journey were BOLT Trustee Winston Burton, Deputy Director 
Doug Smith, Community Relations Librarian Alan Bern, Supervising Library Assistant Sam 
Clemons, BPL Foundation Executive Director Roxanne Figueroa, and BPL volunteer/Tech 
Helper Arlene Oweichik. This group joined other local library advocates in meeting with the 
staffs of Senator Loni Hancock and Assemblyperson Nancy Skinner, emphasizing how libraries 
foster economic development in our communities, are an essential part of our state's 
educational infrastructure, why the PLF fund should be fully funded, and why our public libraries 
are a fundamental source of lifelong learning in society. 
  
More information about the current issues, CLA legislative priorities, and reports on the current 
legislative session is available at  

Information IV, Item C 



 2

http://www.cla-net.org/legislation/legday.php 
  
In conjunction with Leg Day, Senator Hancock has written a short article (Attachment 2) praising 
libraries in which she makes note of us, her hometown library. 
 
In addition, video from April 15th’s joint press conference is now available on CLA’s Facebook & 
YouTube pages.  
  
Community Outreach 
Suzanne Olawski and Alan Bern attended the opening activities for the Brower Center on 
Sunday, May 10. the Center’s opening activities included hosting a day of lectures, 
documentaries, family activities, live music, speeches, and organic sustainable snacks.  The 
nonprofit organizations residing in the Center held “open offices” and spoke to visitors about 
their environmental organizations. The Center graciously opened up their lobby for local 
nonprofit organizations to host their own tables and speak to visitors about their services.  The 
Library was one of the locals invited and filled a table with library information, including 
programming and workshop flyers, children/family reading lists, literacy handouts, stickers, 
pencils, facilities booklets amongst other literature.  Thanks to the Brower Center for an 
excellent location for our outreach table during the opening; we were able to speak to many 
dozens of attendees about Berkeley Public Library services and programs. 
 
 
 
PROGRAMS, SERVICES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
Library cards 
In response to a situation that recently occurred staff has developed new library card patron 
types. While the library had an adult shelter card there was none for young people. We can now 
issue library cards to children, young Teens and teens temporarily living in a shelter situation.  
 
These new types were created to allow patrons access to computers reserved for specific 
patron types – namely Children’s and Teen’s. We’ve had some instances lately where a patron 
with children, and residing in a shelter, could not get computer time for their children, since our 
Shelter patron type has been exclusive to adults up to this point.  
 
To get a shelter card, patrons will still need a letter from the shelter where they are staying, 
confirming their residence there. If it is a child, and their parent already has a shelter card, they 
can be used as a reference/secondary party (just like a normal child’s card), and a second letter 
will not be needed. Even if the child alone wants to a get a card, the parental signature will still 
be required (and the letter from the shelter).  
 
Self Check 

The Library put out a press release in April informing the public about the process we are 
engaged in to upgrade the self-check system for library materials in anticipation of the end of 
the contract with our current vendor 3M.  The current self-check system has been in place at 
Berkeley Public Library at all branch library locations and at Central Library for nearly four years. 
The notice invites library users to send us input: ideas on what has worked and what has not 
worked in our current system; experiences with self-check systems at other libraries; and other 
feedback by May 15, 2009, so that the ideas can be considered before library staff prepares a 
status report to the Board of Library Trustees.    
 
PERSONNEL 
 
Swine Flu 

http://www.cla-net.org/legislation/legday.php�
http://www.youtube.com/user/CLA1895�


 3

Staff responded professionally and calmly to the recent flu scare. They shared information 
internally and were a distribution point for print information for our library visitors.  
 
Volunteers 
While not employees, volunteers are an important part of the library’s efforts to provide excellent 
services. The Library’s annual Volunteer Appreciation Day is schedule for Monday, June 1st , 
2009 and will include a luncheon and  Workshop: “The Best Way I Can Help You Is …” . 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Hancock article



 
 
 
Senator Loni Hancock – On Libraries 
April, 2009 CALTAC 
 
As a child growing up in New York City, I remember the excitement of climbing the 
steps of New York Public Library’s imposing building on Fifth Avenue, looking up in awe 
at the famous stone lions guarding the entrance and looking forward to the adventures I 
would soon be discovering inside. 
 
As a young child, I had a plan.  I was devoted to the idea of reading every single 
children’s book, from A-to-Z, without exception.  Unfortunately, I never got past the first 
three shelves of “A” because the library kept adding new books and I kept reading them.  
However, I am proud to say that I did read every single book by Louisa May Alcott. 
 
I have never stopped going to libraries.  Even with less time to read these days, I have a 
strong relationship with my hometown public library in Berkeley, where I regularly check 
out books on tape and CD for the long drive to Sacramento and back. 
 
I’ve watched libraries grow and expand the definition of information over the years, 
taking on new roles that are essential for democracy to prosper.  Today, as the 
economic crisis deepens and social service budgets are cut, people are turning to 
libraries for assistance as never before.  In my district, patronage at the Contra Costa 
County public libraries has jumped from 4,000 visits a day a year ago to almost 9,000 
today.  The statistics are similar in Alameda County. 
 
At a time when libraries are dealing with ageing buildings, higher operating expenses, 
new technology demands and tremendous pressures on staff to provide an ever-
expanding range of information services, these needs cannot be ignored.   
 
I would like us to be able to fully fund the Public Library Foundation for the first time in 
its 26 years of existence.  It is way past due.  We must also look for ways to give local 
government the flexibility to fund important local priorities, including libraries.  I support 
lowering the vote threshold for approval of local bonds and taxes to 55%.  This will allow 
communities to raise needed funds for library facilities and operations as the state 
continues to reduce support. 
 
A few years ago, a group of librarians gave me bookmarks with the words, “Libraries will 
get you through times of no money better than money will get you through times of no 
libraries.”  I passed them out to my legislative colleagues on the Assembly floor during a 
budget debate. 
 
Those words are more relevant than ever today.  In tough economic times, libraries 
remain a consistent source of education, inspiration and respite.  In an increasingly 
polarized world, libraries remain a place of “common ground.” 
 

--end— 
 

Attachment 1



efranklin
Typewritten Text
Information IV, Item D





















efranklin
Typewritten Text
Communications, Item A














	052009 BOLT Agenda v8
	052009 Bond Budget update v1 1
	052009 Field Paoli contract v3
	052009 Design West and Claremont v2
	2009-2010MillenniumMaintAgreementConsentItem v3
	052009 Hold Reduction v3
	05209 ILL elimination v4
	052009 Library budget update v4
	052009 BRP BOLT Director's Report v2
	052009 Directors Report v3
	BOLT 052009 Library Events
	SuperBold Correspondence 2009_05_12



